
 
 

 

 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 
 

 
Monday, 25 March 2019 at 10.30 am  

 

 
VENUE: Committee Room 1, County Offices, Kendal, 

LA9 4RQ  
 

AGENDA 

 
 

PLEASE NOTE THERE WILL BE A BRIEFING FOR THE PANEL AT 
9.30 AM 

 
   

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
To receive any declarations of interest. 

  
 

3   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of any item on the 

Agenda. 

  
 

4   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

To receive any items of public participation. 
 

(Questions and petitions must be received in writing by 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer at least seven 

working days before the date of the Panel meeting).  
 



 

 

5   MINUTES 

 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 

Panel held on 21 January 2019 (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 5 - 14) 

 
 

6   PRESENTATION BY THE INDEPENDENT OFFICE FOR 

POLICE CONDUCT 
 

To receive a verbal update by the Independent Office for Police 
Conduct. 

  
 

7   REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 3 
 

a   Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19  

To consider a report from Cumbria Constabulary (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 15 - 18) 

 

b   Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Revenue 

Budget Monitoring 2018/19  

To receive a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 19 - 20) 
 

 

8   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2016-

2020 
 

To consider a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (copy enclosed). 
(Pages 21 - 50) 

 
 

9   UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 
 

To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 
Council) (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 51 - 52) 
 

 

10   PANEL UPDATE REPORT 
 

To consider the Panel Briefing from the Senior Manager – Policy 
and Scrutiny (Cumbria County Council) (copy enclosed). 

(Pages 53 - 60) 
 



 

 

11   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the Panel will be held on Friday 12 July 2019 

at 10.30 am in Allerdale House, Allerdale Borough Council, 
Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ. 

  
 

 

 
INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - if you wish to 

inspect Minutes or Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have 
any other general queries about the meeting, please contact: 

 
Lynn Harker, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Cumbria House, 

117 Botchergate, Carlisle, Cumbria CA1 1RD 
 

Telephone Nos: 01228 226364 / 07825340229 



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel held on 
Monday, 21 January 2019 at 10.30 am at Conference Room A, Cumbria 
House, Botchergate, Carlisle. CA1 1RD

PRESENT:

Mr W McEwan (Cumbria County Council) (Chair)

Mr RK Bingham, Cumbria County Council
Miss HJ Fearon, Cumbria County Council (Vice-Chair)
Mr KR Hamilton, Barrow Borough Council
Mr P Kendall, Allerdale Borough Council
Mr J Lynch, Eden District Council
Mr P McSweeney, South Lakeland District Council
Mr G Sunderland, Copeland Borough Council

Also in Attendance:-

Ms M Bellis - Deputy Chief Finance Officer, Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner

Mr T Gale - Senior Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer
Mrs L Harker - Senior Democratic Services Officer
Mr R Marshall - Joint Chief Finance Officer, Office of the Police 

and Crime Commissioner
Mr P McCall - Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
Mrs G Shearer - Head of Communications and Business Services 

- Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Mr B Spencer - Group Solicitor/Deputy Monitoring Officer
Mrs M Skeer - Chief Constable, Cumbria Constabulary
Ms V Stafford - Chief Executive, Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner
Mr P Turney - Interim Senior Manager - Finance

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN 
THE PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND 

PRESS

34 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Ms J Cooke, Mr J Mallinson and 
Ms L Vance.

5

Agenda Item 5



35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Mr J Lynch declared a personal interest as he was in receipt of a pension 
from Cumbria Constabulary.

36 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the 
meeting for any items of business on this occasion.

37 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There were no items of public participation to be considered at this 
meeting.

38 MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meetings held on 15 October 2018 
be confirmed as correct records and signed by the Chair.

39 CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL COMPLAINTS SUB-
COMMITTEE

The minutes of the meeting of the Cumbria Police and Crime Panel 
Complaints Sub-Committee held on 28 November 2018 were noted.

40 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 2

a Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19

The Panel considered a report from Cumbria Constabulary which gave 
details of the Revenue Budget Monitoring for 2018/19.  

Members were informed that the current forecast of net expenditure 
amounted to £117.952m compared to a revised budget of £117.203m.  It 
was explained that the variance amounted to a forecast overspend of 
£0.749m (0.64%) and was made up of a forecast overspend on 
expenditure budgets of £0.971m (0.79%) and over recovery on income 

6



of £0.222m (3.83%).  The Panel noted that the forecast overspend had 
increased by £0.347m compared to the forecast overspend reported as at 
the end of June 2018 of £0.402m.  It was explained that the budget had 
been adjusted to reflect the agreed drawdown of the budget support 
reserve and the injury pension reserve.

The Panel was informed that £369k of the forecast overspend related to a 
forecast increase in the number of individuals required to be retired 
under the pension regulations increasing from 3 to 8.  It was explained 
that the Constabulary met the capital ill health charge of two times 
annual salary (approx. £80k per retirement) and the budget provision 
included funding for three ill health retirements per year. 

Members discussed the number of officers who retired due to ill-health 
and questioned whether there was any pattern in the increased number.  
It was explained this was due to a variety of reasons, highlighting they 
were not all stress-related but included injury or illness-related.  It was 
emphasised to the Panel that the Force had a very strong well-being 
strategy which included mandatory screening for officers involved in high 
stress environments.

The Panel noted that the Constabulary was continuing to look for ways in 
which the overspend could be managed during the remainder of the 
financial year.  It was explained that in the event that there was an 
overspend at the year end, it was proposed that the underspend on the 
capital budget in relation to business analytics (as reported at quarter 1) 
was transferred to the revenue support budget and was in turn used to 
fund the remaining deficit. 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

b Commissioner Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19

The Panel received a report from the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner regarding the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19.

Members were informed that the current forecast of net expenditure 
amounted to £99.418m compared to a revised budget of £98.627m.  It 
was explained that the variance amounted to a forecast overspend of 
£791k (0.80%) and was made up of a forecast overspend of £749k 
(0.64%) in respect of Constabulary budget and a forecast overspend of 
£42k (0.23%) on budgets managed by the Commissioner.

The Panel noted that the forecast underspend on the Commissioner’s own 
budget arose principally as a result of underspends on staff in the office 
of the PCC (£33k), office supplies & services (£4k) and internal and 
external audit costs (£8k). 

7



It was explained that in respect of other budgets managed by the 
Commissioner the forecast overspend arose as a result of increased 
premises costs (£104k), of which the main variances were repair and 
maintenance (£23k), utilities (£81k), employee insurance premiums 
(£18k) and Grants (£9k) which were being offset by forecast, additional 
interest income from investments (£45k).

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

41 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER PRECEPT PROPOSALS

a Cumbria Constabulary: 2018 HMICFRS Value for Money 
Profiles Analysis

Members received a report regarding the Cumbria Constabulary: 2018 
HMICFRS Value for Money Profiles Analysis.

The Panel was informed the profiles compared the forces within 
Cumbria’s Most Similar Group (MSG) which were Lincolnshire, Norfolk 
and North Wales.  It was noted the aim of the profiles was to compare 
performance and the costs of achieving that performance. 

It was highlighted to members that the VFM Profiles in themselves had 
limitations and that they required more detailed investigation before they 
could be safely used as a basis for decision-making.  It was explained 
that in particular the profiles focussed on costs per head of population, 
which tended to show Cumbria as relatively expensive across all services 
due to its low resident population.  It was emphasised to members that 
the impact of increased population due to tourism was not taken into 
account.  In addition, caution also needed to be exercised in ensuring 
that costs and categorisations gave a true comparison on a like for like 
basis.

Members were informed that the high level analysis only covered areas of 
service where Cumbria had been identified as an outlier compared with 
its peer group.  It was explained that an outlier was defined as being in 
the top or bottom 10% and where the effect of the difference was greater 
than £1 per head of population. 

The 2018 profiles showed that the areas identified as being significantly 
above all forces or MSG average cost were broadly the same this year as 
they had been in previous years and this had consistently been the case 
across the period since value for money profiles were first introduced. 

The general points regarding VFM profiles was brought to the 
Committee’s attention explaining that Cumbria’s geography, topography 
and socio-economic environment were unique and there were fixed costs 
associated with this regardless of other comparisons.  It was explained 

8



that population was the main determinant used in the profiles for 
assessing value for money highlighting this significantly disadvantaged 
Cumbria.  

The Panel were informed that the sparsity of the population, the rural 
nature of the county and the isolated geographic location of the county in 
England, resulted in higher costs to deliver police services compared to 
other forces and, limited opportunities for cost effective collaborations 
with other forces for specialist operational services or private companies 
to provide services.  Members noted that as a result, Cumbria 
Constabulary required more people and more equipment to deliver a 
police service to a small population distributed over a large area. 

It was explained to members that all of the above resulted in additional 
fixed costs irrespective of how and by whom police services were 
provided and regardless of policy or strategy decisions made by senior 
management. 

The Panel raised their concerns regarding VFM profiles highlighting that 
comparisons with other forces were difficult and it was felt this could 
emanate into misleading information.  Officers acknowledged that the 
value of the exercise had decreased and over time it was felt a deep dive 
into certain areas would be more beneficial.  

Members raised their concerns regarding Cumbria having the highest cost 
of police doctors, nurses and surgeons in the country.  The Panel 
welcomed the custody function being identified to be subject of a change 
review, which included workforce modernisation to reduce the cost base.  
Members noted there was now a procurement exercise in place for 
medical contracts within the Force and that local GPs had been afforded 
the opportunity to take part in it.

The Panel welcomed the Cumbria’s Operational Support Unit Firearms as 
being the cheapest in the country which was due to a multi-skilled 
function and included a secondary firearms response.  

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

b Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Forecast

Members considered a report by the Cumbria Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner which provided a detailed analysis of the figures 
contained within the revenue budget for 2019/20 and the Medium Term 
Financial Forecast (MTFF) to 2022/23.  

The report also provided a more detailed analysis of the budgets for 
2019/20 together with comparative information from the 2018/19 
approved budget.  

9



Members were provided with additional information in respect of the 
more unusual aspects of the budget and explanations where the budgets 
had changed significantly between the years with a summary of the 
overall revenue budget and MTFF position.

A discussion took place regarding any anticipated costs associated with 
the increase in training and conference which reflected increased 
demands for operational training, investment in strengths-based 
coaching and costs associated with the implementation of the Police 
Education Qualification Framework (PEQF).  Members noted that the 
PEQF was mandatory in accordance with national standards and would 
require all police officer recruits to either have a degree or join the Force 
as an apprentice from January 2020. 

The Panel raised their concerns regarding direct entry for inspectors and 
superintendents.  Members were assured that all candidates received 
rigorous training and support to help them acclimatise to the role.  It was 
also explained that training would also involve a great amount of 
interaction with teams within the Force to gain an understanding of the 
nuances of the post.  It was emphasised that a large amount of training, 
mentoring and shadowing was undertaken to ensure the individual was fit 
for purpose when they took over the role.  Members highlighted the 
importance of promoting better understanding of direct entry to the 
public and this was acknowledged by officers.

The Panel considered the Premises Related Expenditure Budget 2019/20.  
Officers confirmed that the costs associated with Hall Brow, Workington 
were due to the existing PFI and those regarding Phoenix Way, Barrow 
were regarding routine maintenance of the building.  During the course of 
discussion members queried whether there were solar panels in the new 
Police Station at Phoenix Way, Barrow and it was agreed this would be 
investigated with a written response made to the Panel. 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

c Draft Capital Programme 2019/20 and Beyond

The Panel considered a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner which provided information on the proposed capital 
programme for 2019/20 and beyond, both in terms of capital expenditure 
projections and the financing available to fund such expenditure.  It was 
explained that the capital programme was developed in consultation with 
the Constabulary who were the primary user of the capital assets under 
the ownership of the Commissioner.

Members were informed of the three main recurring elements to the 
Commissioner’s capital programme namely Fleet, Estate and ICT 

10



schemes.  The Panel drew attention to the costs associated with ICT 
schemes and in particular printing costs.  It was explained that such 
costs had reduced significantly with the introduction of multi-functional 
printers and paperless internal meetings.  The Panel highlighted the 
importance of the management of contracts.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

d Precept Consultation Responses

The Panel received an update on the Precept Consultation responses and 
noted the methodology used noting that the on-line survey had been the 
most popular.  Members were informed that to-date there had been 
2,115 responses received which was significantly more than the previous 
year.

e Precept Proposal and Medium Term Budget 2019/20 to 
2022/23

The Panel considered a report by the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner which provided an overview of the medium term financial 
outlook.  The report included the proposal for the precept that the 
Commissioner was presenting to the Panel for their views as part of his 
budget setting process. 

Members noted that the precept proposal for 2019/20 was for an 
increase in precept of 10.29% which was an increase of £23.94 per 
annum for a band D property and took the total police element of the 
precept at band D to £256.68.  Officers emphasised their reluctance in 
the proposed increase but highlighted its necessity to ensure a 
sustainable Force.

The Panel was informed that the net budget requirement comprising 
expenditure by the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Constabulary 
for 2019/20 was £103.881m.  It was explained that this was the total net 
expenditure funded externally by income from the Home Office Police 
Grant and Council Tax and represented a real terms increase of income 
of 5.33% compared to 2018/19. 

Members were informed that the precept proposal aimed to mitigate the 
impact of real term reductions in government funding.  It was explained 
the Home Office had increased formula grant funding to Cumbria by 
£1.23m and also provided a specific Pensions Grant of £1.17m in 
2019/20.  It was noted, however, the additional grants had the effect of 
largely offsetting increased police officer pension costs, which had been 
imposed from 2019/20.  The Government grant funding, therefore, made 
no allowance for the effect of pay and price inflation on the cost of 
providing policing services. 

11



The Panel was informed that from 2017/18 the Government’s public 
sector pay cap of 1% was removed.  It was noted that the pay award for 
officers in 2018 was 2%, however, this was lower than the 3% 
recommended by the Police Remuneration Review Body and was now 
subject of a judicial review.  It was explained that against this 
background the 2019/20 budget and MTFF were based on an assumption 
of pay increases of 3% from 2019.  Members were informed that in 
addition, general inflation had consistently exceeded 2% over the last 
year and may increase further in the short term, as a result of the effect 
of uncertainty over Brexit on the value of sterling.  It was highlighted 
that every effort was made to manage budgets including the 
Constabulary’s Star Chamber process, which zero bases non staff 
expenditure, and detailed assessment of vacant posts prior to granting 
approval to recruit.  However, after implementing those measures for 
several years the ability to fully offset the inflationary pressures without 
impacting on services was limited. 

Members noted that the significant proportion of expenditure within the 
2019/20 budget provided for the costs of policing within Cumbria.  It was 
explained that the current budget aimed to provide the Chief Constable 
with an expenditure budget of £129.692m which would provide for 1,165 
police officers.  Members noted that this represented an increase of 20 
police officers compared to 2018/19, and 95 PCSOs, which represents 
maintenance of the number of the established posts compared to 
2018/19.  During the course of discussion the Panel were informed that 
the additional 20 police officers would not all necessarily be direct 
policing but may be deployed to different roles due to the rise in complex 
investigations by officers.

It was highlighted that actual numbers of staff may fluctuate above and 
below the establishment depending on the pattern of recruitment, leavers 
and retirements.  

It was explained to members that the proposed increase in Council Tax 
aimed to utilise the greater flexibility afforded to Police and Crime 
Commissioners to raise income locally to support for the Constabulary in 
its efforts to maintain performance and keep Cumbria safe. 

The Panel were informed that Council tax increases, in combination with 
judicious use of reserves to support the budget, would help to manage 
budget pressures and, therefore, maintain services at a higher level than 
would otherwise be the case.  

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

12



42 DRAFT PRECEPT PROPOSALS (CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL)

Members considered a report by the Assistant Director – Finance 
(Cumbria County Council) regarding the Draft Precept Proposals 
(2019/20).  The information accompanied the report from the Cumbria 
Police and Crime Commissioner which set out the proposed budget and 
precept for 2019/20 and explained the Panel’s options for 
decision-making.

The Panel was asked to review the proposed precept and decide whether 
to, support the precept without qualification or comment, support the 
precept and make recommendations or veto the proposed precept.

It was MOVED by Mr K Hamilton and SECONDED by Mr G Sunderland that 
the precept of 10.29% be supported without qualification.  Following a 
unanimous vote in favour of the motion, it was 

RESOLVED, that the precept of 10.29% be supported without 
qualification.

43 COMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTS

The Panel received a report from the Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County 
Council) which advised members of any complaints received in 
accordance with the Panel’s Complaints Procedure.  The report outlined, 
where appropriate, what, if any, action had been taken in respect of the 
complaints.

Members noted that, as previously recommended, the Cumbria Police 
and Crime Panel Complaints Sub-Committee had been convened on 
28 November 2018 to consider two of the ongoing four complaints for 
which resolutions had not been agreed.  The Panel noted that the 
Sub-Committee had resolved to take no further action as there was no 
resolution of the complaint that was within the Sub-Committee’s powers 
(referred to at minute 39).

The Panel were informed that with respect to the third ongoing complaint 
at the time of the previous report, the Commissioner provided a response 
to a complaint that had been refined through correspondence with the 
Deputy Monitoring Officer.  It was explained that having received this 
response with further comments from the Deputy Monitoring Officer, the 
complainant decided to withdraw the complaint.  

It was explained to members that the final ongoing complaints matter 
was framed as a complaint but did not actually detail any failing on behalf 
of the Commissioner.  Members noted that a query was raised as to 
what, if anything, the complaint against the Commissioner was but no 

13



response had been received.  Accordingly, the initial correspondence 
would not be treated as having been a complaint and no further action 
would be taken.

During the course of discussion it was agreed to change the title of future 
reports to read ‘Update on Complaints’.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

44 PANEL UPDATE REPORT

Members received a Panel Update report which provided information on:-

 Key issues and developments that had occurred since the last 
meeting of the Panel on 15 October 2018 including:-

o Progress on actions agreed at the October Panel meeting
o National policy developments
o The Panel’s work programme.

During the course of discussion it was confirmed that information 
regarding forthcoming meetings and dates was referring to the Public 
Accountability Conference. 

Members discussed the Serious and Organised Crime Strategy 
highlighting the county lines and thanked officers for the work they had 
undertaken.

The Panel thanked the officers of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
a productive and positive work planning meeting highlighting the benefits 
of good partnership working.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

45 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday 
25 March 2019 at 10.30 am in County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ.

The meeting ended at 12.20 pm

14



Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 - Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 
 

 

Constabulary Summary at December 2018 

The current forecast of net expenditure amounts to £118.073m compared to a revised budget of £117.427m.  The 

variance amounts to a forecast overspend of £0.646m (0.55%) and is made up of a forecast overspend on expenditure 

budgets of £1.062m (0.86%) and increased income of £0.416m (6.83%).  The forecast overspend has reduced by 

£0.103m compared to the forecast overspend reported as at the end of September 2018 of £0.749m. 

 

It should be noted however, that the overspend has been reduced through the agreed application of revenue budget 

reserves (budget support reserve and the injury pension reserve). 

 

The Constabulary is continuing to look for ways in which the overspend can be managed during the remainder of the 

financial year.   In the event that there is an overspend at the year end, it is proposed that the underspend on the 

capital budget for 2018/19 be used to fund the remaining deficit. 

 

 

  

Description Revised Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Change

Budget Expenditure

/ (Income)

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

from      

SEP-18

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 @ SEP-18 to DEC-18

£'000s £'000s £'000s % £'000s £'000s

Constabulary Funding

Police Officers 83,339 84,373 1,034 1.24% 998 36

Police Community Support Officers 3,131 2,852 (279) -8.91% (342) 63

Police Staff 20,973 21,175 202 0.96% 132 70

Other Employee Budgets 1,658 1,744 86 5.19% (40) 126

Transport Related Expenditure 2,157 2,253 96 4.45% 94 2

Supplies & Services 10,076 10,001 (75) -0.74% 106 (181)

Third Party Related Expenses 2,180 2,178 (2) -0.09% 23 (25)

Total Constabulary Funding 123,514 124,576 1,062 0.86% 971 91

Income (6,087) (6,503) (416) 6.83% (222) (194)

Total Constabulary Funding Net of Income 117,427 118,073 646 0.55% 749 (103)

15

Agenda Item 7a



Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 - Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 
 

 

Current Forecast 

The forecast constabulary overspend is largely as a result of a forecast overspend on police officer pay and allowances 

of £1.034m.  The forecast overspend can be broken down into 3 main areas: 

 Workforce Plan Changes - £543k relates partly to changes to the proposed HR Workforce Plan (WFP) to 

facilitate the earlier recruitment of the additional 25 police officers as pledged by the Commissioner in relation 

to the increase in council tax precept.  In addition, the decision to operate approximately 20 officers over 

establishment for police officers for the remainder of the financial year to counterbalance the reduction in 

actual PCSO numbers (as they leave to join as regular police officers) has also contributed to the increase in 

expenditure.  The additional officers will also safeguard against potential difficulty in recruiting as a result of 

the forthcoming changes in relation to the Police Education Qualification Framework (PEQF) effective from 

the 1st January 2020. Expenditure on Police Officer Pay has been mitigated the agreed drawdown of the budget 

support reserve. 

 

 Ill Health / Injury Pensions - £389k of the forecast overspend relates to a forecast increase in the number of 

individuals required to be retired under the police pension regulations increasing from 3 to 8.  In each case 

the Constabulary must meet the capital ill health charge of two times annual salary (approx. £80k per 

retirement).  The budget provision includes funding for three ill health retirements per year.  A further, £25k 

of this overspend relates to an increase in payments of injury allowances, due to payment of arrears following 

a successful appeal.  Expenditure on ill health retirements has been mitigated by the agreed drawdown of a 

pensions reserve. 

 

 Police Officer Overtime - £102k of the forecast overspend relates to pressure being experienced on overtime 

budgets in Territorial Policing command. 

 

  

16



Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 - Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 
 

 

The chart below illustrates the current HR WFP.  The green line represents the HR WFP used for budget setting 

purposes, the red line represents the current HR WFP at December 2018.  Where the red line is above the green line 

(which it is for the majority of the year), an overspend will result. 

 

The overspend on police officers is being offset by reductions in expenditure for PCSO pay (£279k).  The PCSO 

underspend arises as a result of changes to the profile of PCSO leavers and reductions in planned intakes.  The WFP 

now sees the average PCSO numbers for the year being 86.75 FTE, some 8.25 FTE below the establishment of 95 FTE. 

 

The police staff budget is forecast to overspend by £202k.  The overspend on police staff has arisen as a result of the 

assumptions made with regard to when vacant posts are expected to be filled.   

 

The other employee expenses budget is forecasted to overspend by £86k.  The apprenticeship levy falls under this 

heading.  The current assumption is that £206k of the levy paid in 2017/18 will now not be used and as a result will 

need to be accounted for as expenditure in the current year.  The assumptions in relation to the £306k anticipated 

levy for 2018/19 is that this will be used in future years and as such will be accrued into 2019/20.  The net impact on 

2018/19 is a budget saving of £100k.  This saving is being offset by increases in training (£92k) and recruitment costs 

(£48k), mainly as a result of the accelerated recruitment of police officers together with costs of change management 

(£32k). 

 

The transport related budget is forecasting to overspend by £95k, the primary reason for this is in relation to a forecast 

increase in fuel costs (£55k).  When the original budget was constructed an above inflation increase of 5% was applied 

to the fuel budget.  The actual increase seen at the pump between December 2017 and July 2018 was around 8%.  In 

addition to fuel increases, there has been an increase in fleet mileage. The budgets for repair and maintenance (£29k) 

17



Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 - Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 
 

 

and hire cars (£43k) are also reporting pressure, which is being offset by reductions in car allowance and travel 

expenses payments (£40k). 

 

The supplies and services budget is showing a forecast underspend of £75k.  This is due, in the main, to forecast 

underspends on ICT, police doctors and surgeons and interpreters. These are somewhat offset by overspends on 

catering, uniform, custody and forensic costs. 

 

The third party payments budget is forecast to underspend by £2k. Underlying this is a reduction to the TITAN 

collaboration for 2018/19, which is offset by additional charges for forensic collision investigation, SIO accreditation 

and contributions to NPCC. 

 

Income receipts are forecast to be £416k higher than budgeted. This is across a number of headings including the 

reimbursement for specialist policing services (£256k), mutual aid (£142k) and sale of goods and assets (£63k).  This 

additional income is somewhat offset by a shortfall in Firearms Licencing income, which follows a five year cycle (£98k). 

 

Change in Forecast between September and December 

As outlined above the forecast overspend position has reduced from the figure of £0.749m reported as at the end of 

September to the figure of £0.646m reported at the end of December.  The main reasons for the reduction in forecast 

overspend of £0.103m can be summarised as follows: 

 Police Officer Pay increase of £36k, which is the net impact of changes to workforce planning assumptions 

during the quarter. 

 PCSO Pay increase of £63k due to changes in the profile of leavers and new recruits. 

 Police Staff Pay increase of £79k in respect of changes to the assumptions of when vacant posts will be filled. 

 Other Employee expenses increase of £126k relating to changes in forecasts for agency staff (£35k), change 

management (£26k) and apprenticeship levy charges (£55k). 

 Supplies & Services reduction £181k as a result of reduction in ICT costs (£115k), custody medical contract 

costs (£27k), uniform costs (£32k), catering (£12k). 

 Third Party Payments reduction of £25k in respect of the contributions to North West ROCU (TITAN). 

 Additional income of £194k in respect of income from the provision of specialist policing services (£124k) and 

mutual aid (£70k). 

 

18



PCC Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 

 

PCC Budget Summary at December 2018 

The current forecast of net expenditure amounts to £99.250m compared to a revised budget of £98.627m.  The 

variance amounts to a forecast overspend of £623k (0.63%) and is made up of a forecast overspend of £646k (0.55%) 

in respect of Constabulary budget and a forecast underspend of £23k (0.12%) on budgets managed by the 

Commissioner. The overall overspend represents a reduction of £168k compared with the position reported at 

September.  

The aim remains to contain expenditure within budget by the year end, but, if this does not prove possible, it is planned 

that the deficit will be met from an underspend on the capital budget in relation to Business Analytics.  

 

OPCC Budgets 

The forecast underspend on the Commissioner’s own budget arises principally as a result of underspends on staff in 

the office of the PCC (£38k), office supplies & services (£4k) and internal and external audit costs (£6k).   

In respect of other budgets managed by the Commissioner the forecast overspend arises as a result of an increase to 

provide for future legal costs (£41k), increased premises costs (£17k), employee insurance premiums (£17k) and 

Grants (£9k), which are being offset by forecast additional interest income from investments (£60k). 

Constabulary Budgets 

The forecast constabulary overspend is largely as a result of a forecast overspend on police officer pay and allowances 

of £1.034m.  This overspend has arisen as a result of changes to the proposed HR Workforce Plan (WFP) to facilitate 

earlier recruitment of the additional 25 police officers as pledged by the Commissioner in relation to the increase in 

council tax precept in 2018.  In addition, the decision to operate approximately 20 police officers over establishment 

for the remainder of the financial year to counterbalance the reduction in actual PCSO numbers (who have left to join 

Description Revised Forecast Provisional Provisional Forecast Change in

Budget Expenditure 

/ (Income

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

(Under)/

Overspend

Forecast 

SEP-18 to

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 @ SEP-18 DEC-18

£'000s £'000s £'000s % £'000s £'000s

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 723 674 (49) -6.78% (45) (4)

Other PCC Budgets (15,680) (15,654) 26 -0.17% 87 (61)

Movements To / (From) Reserves (3,843) (3,843) 0 0.00% 0 0

Total OPCC Budgets (18,800) (18,823) (23) 0.12% 42 (65)

Funding Provided to the Constabulary 117,427 118,073 646 0.55% 749 (103)

Net Expenditure 98,627 99,250 623 0.63% 791 (168)

External Funding (98,627) (98,627) 0 0.00% 0 0

Total 0 623 623 791 (168)

19

Agenda Item 7b



PCC Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 
Forecast as at 31 December 2018 Report to Police and Crime Panel 25 March 2019 

 

as regular PCs) has further contributed to the overspend.  These additional officers will also safeguard against potential 

difficulty in recruiting, as a result of the forthcoming changes in relation to the Police Education Qualification 

Framework (PEQF).  

 

Other areas of the budget where overspends are forecast include police staff budgets £202k (reduced vacancies), 

other employee budgets £86k (recruitment and training) and transport related budgets £96k (fuel and repairs and 

maintenance).  These overspends are being partially offset by under-spending in relation to PCSOs £279k, supplies and 

services £75k and additional income of £416k, which has arisen from charges for special policing services and mutual 

aid. 

The Constabulary budget monitoring report elsewhere on this agenda provides a more detailed explanation of the 

variances. 

 

Police Property Act 

At 31 December 2018 the balance on the Police Property Act fund was £37k.  In December 2018, awards totalling £10k 

were made from the fund.  Full details of the awards made are available on the PCC website at https://cumbria-

pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/ 

20

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/successful-applicantsgrant-agreements/


 

 

 
 

Office of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner Report 
 

Annual Review of the Police & Crime Plan  
2016-2020 

 
 
Date:   27th February 2019 
Originating Officer:  Stephanie Stables, Partnerships and Strategy Manager 
 
Executive Summary:  
This report provides a high level performance summary against each of the objectives in the Police 
& Crime Plan.  It provides example of key activity the Police & Crime Commissioner, along with 
partners, have delivered during 2018-2019 and includes an overview of how this has supported 
local communities across Cumbria.  This report will form the basis of the Annual Report for 2018-
2019 and identify keys areas of work for the next 12 months. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Panel notes the progress against the Police and Crime Plan objectives. 
 
1. Introduction & Background  
 
1.1 Police & Crime Plans are a statutory requirement for all police force areas introduced as 

part of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.  The plan is both a planning 
tool for Police & Crime Commissioners and an important mechanism for communicating the 
Commissioner’s intentions to the public, police, partner agencies, the Police & Crime Panel 
and other stakeholders. 
 

1.2 The current Police & Crime Plan covers the period 2016 to 2020.  It identifies broad long-
term crime, community safety and criminal justice objectives for Cumbria and is accessible 
to a wide range of audiences.  The plan was developed with input from the public, police 
and key partners and is also linked to the national policing priorities.  The primary focus of 
the plan is to tackle crime and antisocial behaviour, support victims and bring offenders to 
justice through effective partnership working with statutory and third sector partners, and 

21

Agenda Item 8



 

 

local community groups.  The Commissioner has been clear that he is keen to promote the 
approach of ‘We Not They’ recognising that it is the responsibility of all to make “Cumbria 
Even Safer”.   
 

1.3 The Commissioner has in place a robust and transparent governance framework that 
enables him to fulfil his statutory duty and obtain reassurance that the objectives within the 
Police & Crime Plan are being delivered.  
 

1.4 Throughout the year, the Police & Crime Panel has also received thematic reports in line 
with its work programme, providing assurance of how the Commissioner is ensuring 
delivery of the Police & Crime Plan. 

 
2. Police & Crime Plan Objectives 2016-2020 
 
2.1 The objectives in the Police & Crime Plan are: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2.2 The follow section provides a good insight into the progress made against each objective 
during 2018-2019.  As requested by the Police & Crime Panel, it also provides an update 
regarding 101; how the Commissioner is tackling alcohol & substance misuse, and working 
with partner agencies.  The Commissioner continues to work with and support partners and 
stakeholders to focus on the issues that local people are telling him.  During the last year, 
the Commissioner has: 

 Chaired the Safer Cumbria Partnership. 

 Established governance arrangements to take forward Blue Light Collaboration. 

 Commissioned an Integrated Independent Domestic Abuse & Sexual Abuse Crisis 
Support Service with Cumbria County Council. 

 Is working with Cumbria County Council, the Constabulary, NHS England, Local 
District Councils and other agencies to develop a gateway of services for people 
affected by crime and abuse, referred to as the Victims Hub.  

22



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

This first objective in the Police & Crime Plan demonstrates the Commissioner’s commitment to ensuring that communities are given the opportunity to 
participate to the fullest extent possible in the decisions that affect their lives and in delivering a police services that make a difference to them.  A wide 
range of approaches are adopted by the Commissioner to enable him to actively listen, consider and effectively use the views of residents as an integral 
part of his decision making.  The table below presents the work carried out during 2018-2019. 

 
Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Produced and published a detailed 
Annual Report informing the public on 
the progress of the Police & Crime Plan. 

The Commissioner is the locally elected official to be the voice of the public, relating to 
matters of crime and policing.  The Annual Report provides a significant contribution to 
public assurance regarding the work of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(OPCC) as it provides an excellent insight into the breadth and depth of what the 
Commissioner has done and how he is fulfilling his statutory duty.    

The Commissioner has used the results of 
the public consultation on setting the 
council tax percept to influence and set 
the budget for the financial year 2018-
2019. 

The Commissioner and Chief Constable agreed the budget following public consultation.  
The additional revenue contributed to funding: 

 25 additional police officers within the Local Focus Hubs, providing a visible 
presence across the six districts, tackling issues that are important. 

 Maintaining Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) guaranteeing the delivery 
of a strong pro-active visible presence in the community. 

 Increasing the number of armed officers available to protect and respond to 
potential terror threats or dangerous individuals. 

 Improving the protection of children from abuse, especially online grooming and 
exploitation.  

 Greater protection against online crime and fraud. 

 Held sixteen public surgeries across 
the county, including the business 
sector, providing an opportunity for 
people to raise issues, share views, 
and express their satisfaction or 
dissatisfaction with the police.  Held 
 

When members of the public write to the Commissioner, or raise issues or concerns at one 
of his public surgeries, these are raised with the Chief Constable’s Staff Office.  All 
individuals receive a written response answering their questions or queries.  Dependent 
upon the issues raised, officers or PCSOs from local policing teams will contact the 
individual with a view to seeking a resolution to the matter, include it within local 
initiatives or refer them to other more appropriate agencies to provide support.  Two case 
 

Get feedback from 
members of the 
public across the 

county to 
understand what 

they think the 
Police priorities 

should be 

23



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

five Public Accountability 
Conferences (PAC) and five Finance 
Accountability Conferences. 

 When people raise issues or concerns 
with the Commissioner, these are 
logged as ‘Quality of Service or 
Policing Issues’ (QSPIs).  This is so, 
where action is required, cases can 
be tracked and trends can be 
identified.  For 2018, 350 QSPIs were 
received of which 36 were in relation 
to the policing of Appleby Fair. 

 
 
 

studies below provide an excellent overview of the positive work carried out as a result of 
the public surgeries / QSPIs. 
 
CASE STUDIES – Cockermouth Town Centre & Appleby Fair 
In September 2018, the Commissioner organised a public surgery in Cockermouth after 
recent press regarding issues with shoplifting.  The Commissioner invited local business 
owners that had been affected and local residents. The surgery was very well attended and 
attracted a wide and diverse audience.  Afterwards the Commissioner scheduled a visit to 
a further business in the town centre that was unable to attend the surgery. 
 
Following feedback at the surgery, the Local Focus Hub adopted this as a priority concern.  
The pro-active officers and PCSOs increased their patrols which resulted in a suspect being 
arrested whilst an officer was patrolling the area, one person being charged and remanded 
by the courts and two further arrests were made.  In addition, officers regularly visited 
local businesses and conducted crime prevention surveys after every offence; a Shopwatch 
Volunteer was recruited to strengthen the Shopwatch Scheme in the area and the local 
Inspector held further meetings with local businesses in December 2018 and January 2019.  
 
Following the 36 QSPIs concerning Appleby Fair the Commissioner held two public 
surgeries which resulted in a further 100 QSPIs (80 people attended Kirkby Stephen and 20 
people Kirkby Lonsdale).  The surgeries provided an opportunity for people to raise issues 
and share their views.  In response to this, the Commissioner requested a formal review of 
the policing operation of Appleby Fair, specifically focusing on the period in the lead up to 
the fair.  The Commissioner also asked for the review to include areas where the policing 
review had not gone well and to identify how the Constabulary will improve their response 
for the next Appleby Fair.  This was presented to the Commissioner at a Special Public 
Accountability Conference (PAC) on the 26th September 2018.  Following the presentation, 
the Commissioner released the following statement: 
“I welcome the fact that the Force has identified areas for improvement.  It is important 
to be open and honest about operations and the Force has heard and acknowledged 
concerns raised by local residents to me.  The Chief Constable has committed to putting 
in place measures to address these issues for the next fair.” 

24



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

 Continued to engage with young people 
through the Cumbria Youth Commission 
(CYC).   

CYC was launched in March 2017 and provides a unique opportunity for the Commissioner 
and Constabulary to work alongside young people across the county.  This excellent and 
innovative programme enables young people to be involved in producing and developing 
solutions they feel will best meet their needs.  Further information regarding the Youth 
Commission is provided under objective 8 ‘Supporting Young People’. 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 

The Commissioner continues to empower 
local communities to tackle the issues in 
their local area.  He provides a 
Community Fund and Property Fund 
which support community groups, watch 
schemes, parish councils, charities, 
voluntary groups and schools to deliver 
initiatives that will benefit members of 
the community and support the 
objectives in the Police & Crime Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

So far this financial year, around £100,000 has been awarded to various projects from both 
funds, covering a number of objectives within the Police & Crime Plan.  Below are 
examples of what has been funded and what they have achieved.  Further examples are 
provided throughout this report.   
 
Resource Creatives to deliver workshops in primary schools to educate children and young 
people on the impact of getting involved in anti-social behaviour, gangs, serious and 
organised crime and victim awareness.  Local Inspectors were involved in this project to 
help identify the topics for discussion aimed at providing specific interventions to address 
issues within a policing area.  Workshops were delivered in 16 schools – 8 primary and 8 
secondary schools across the county.  A total of 1,556 children and young people attended 
the workshops and are now better informed of the dangers and consequences of 
becoming involved in antisocial behaviour activity, gangs and serious and organised crime, 
and the impact this can have on people.  Following the workshops, half of the primary 
schools requested further support from their local PCSOs, as did 7 out of 8 secondary 
schools.  Positive feedback includes: “This was excellent and very relevant to our children. 
They engaged right from the start… I don’t think they realised that some of the low level 
behaviours some of them are getting involved in are serious, so getting that message 
from other professionals is just what they needed.”    
 
Carlisle Retailers Against Crime is working closely with the Constabulary to reduce retail 
and business crime in the city and assist in the reduction of antisocial behaviour.  During 
one operation, two prolific female offenders were arrested for separate crimes and three 
males were arrested for three separate crimes, including criminal damage and theft. 

 
 

 
 

Support and 
enable community 
groups to prevent 
and tackle crime & 

disorder in their 
area 

25



 

 

 
 
 

 

A significant part of the Commissioners statutory role is to oversee the performance of the Constabulary and hold the Chief Constable to account for the 
delivery of an effective and efficient police service on behalf of the public. 

 
Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

With support from the public, the 
Commissioner was able to pledge to 
recruit an additional 25 police officers 
during 2018-2019 and retain the level of 
PCSOs to help increase police visibility 
across the county. 
 
 

25 additional officers have been recruited and deployed across the county to enhance the 
Neighbourhood Policing Teams.  This goes hand in hand with the launch of the six district 
based Local Focus Hubs to ensure the Constabulary is effectively supporting and 
prioritising the needs of local communities through public engagement, visible and 
effective policing and partnership problem solving.  To support the Local Focus Hubs the 
Constabulary has also launched local Facebook focus groups, allowing the public to liaise 
directly with a number of agencies in one place, and ‘#Extra25 and #LocalFocus’ which 
demonstrates to the public how the increase in council tax has supported local policing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Through his Public Accountability 
Conferences, the Commissioner has held 
the Constabulary to account on how it 
engages with local communities. 

This provides the Commissioner with reassurance that the Constabulary is working to 
maintain a visible and effective police presence in local communities.  The Constabulary 
holds regularly drop in sessions, attends local events and meetings, provides opportunities 
for members of the public to speak to a police officer or PCSO by visiting a local police desk 
and involves local people in policing operations.  The use of social media and technology is 
also helping the Constabulary to maximise effectiveness.  

Make sure the Police 
understand and are 
tackling the types of 

crimes which are 
affecting people 

today 

Look at how we 
provide visible 

uniformed policing 
in our 

communities 

Make sure the 
Police are engaged 

in our local 
communities to 
understand local 

issues 

26



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 

The Commissioner regularly sees first-
hand how the Constabulary is working 
hard to tackle crimes that are affecting 
local communities. 
 

The Commissioner was involved in a large scale operation targeting county lines drug 
supply activity in Barrow, called Operation Horizon.  This operation was ten months in the 
planning following 12 drug deaths in Barrow from December 2017 and resulted in multiple 
arrests and the seizure of thousands of pounds in cash and quantities of heroin and crack 
cocaine.  The Commissioner has also been involved in Operation Sawfish were the 
Proactive Neighbourhood Policing Teams across the county are focusing on high visibility 
foot patrols in their local area, speaking to members of the public, identifying community 
issues and providing reassurance. 

The Commissioner informs the 
Constabulary of issues raised directly to 
him through QSPIs, public 
surgeries/events or meetings and 
provides a written response to all 
individuals, answering their questions or 
queries. 

The case study below identifies how the Constabulary addressed a concern raised 
regarding antisocial behaviour in Great Clifton in 2018. 
 
CASE STUDy – Antisocial Behaviour in Great Clifton  
A multi-agency meeting was held at the Local Focus Hub from which a number of activities 
took place to address antisocial behaviour in the area.  Pro-active teams were tasked to 
carry out further and dedicated patrols around the area.  The local Inspector and PCSO also 
met with local residents to go through their concerns.   

 The Commissioner continues to 
collaborate with others agencies.  
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner has established governance arrangements to take forward Blue Light 
Collaboration.  Further information regarding this collaboration is provided under 
objective 7 ‘Spend Your Money Wisely’.  The Commissioner also continues to co-fund the 
North West Regional Co-ordinator for Crimestoppers who has worked closely with staff in 
the OPCC to deliver a Safer Driving Campaign.  This campaign is detailed further under 
objective 3 ‘Tackle Crime & Antisocial Behaviour’.  
 

 Overseen areas that have been identified 
by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary Fire & Rescue Services 
(HMICFRS) as requiring improvement by 
holding the Constabulary to account 
through the Public Accountability 
Conferences, and other internal 
accountability processes, to ensure work 
is being done to address these.  

As part of the annual PEEL inspection programme, the Constabulary was assessed as 
‘GOOD’ across the three core pillars: Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy.  17 areas for 
improvement were identified, all of which have been completed.  For example, one area 
for improvement identified during the Legitimacy Inspection was the desire for greater use 
of body-worn video.  With help from the Commissioner, personal issue body-worn video 
equipment has been rolled out to all frontline police officers.  The Commissioner receives 
updates from the Chief Constable regarding the benefits of this equipment through his 
Public Accountability Conferences.  The advantages of body-worn video is that it enables 
officers to be far more transparent in their dealings with the public, it helps keep officers 
safe and provides best evidence potentially increasing the chances of an early guilty plea. 
 

Make sure the Police 
understand and are 
tackling the types of 

crimes which are 
affecting people 

today 

Make improvements 
in the areas which 

recent inspections of 
the Police found 

could be done better 

Collaborate 
with other 
forces and 
agencies in 

specialist areas 

Make sure the 
Police understand 

and are tackling the 
types of crimes 

which are affecting 
people today 

27



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner through his 
accountability framework, receives 
assurance from the Constabulary that it is 
able to deal with such threats.   

Operational policing is the responsibility of the Chief Constable.  The Chief Constable works 
to the Strategic Policing Requirement which focuses on national and international threats 
and how this is devolved locally.  The police remain a key multi-agency partner and 
responder to natural disasters within the county, for example severe weather.  The 
Commissioner receives reassurance around these events through his weekly one to ones 
with the Chief Constable and his Public Accountability Conferences.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
The Commissioner is responsible for commissioning or funding activities to support the objectives within the Police and Crime Plan.  This section provides 
many examples of what the Commissioner has done to tackle crime and antisocial behaviour across Cumbria, working in partnership with a variety of 
community based groups, the voluntary sector and support services for victims.  The Commissioner also receives reassurance through his Public 
Accountability Conferences where he receives detailed thematic presentations describing the steps taken by the Constabulary to tackle all areas of crime 
and antisocial behaviour.  

 
 
 

Make sure the Police 
understand and are 
tackling the types of 

crimes which are 
affecting people 

today 

Make sure the 
Police are ready to 
deal with threats 

which develop in or 
affect a wider area 
than Cumbria (i.e. 
natural disasters, 
civil emergencies)  

28



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provided funding to support services / 
community groups to deliver 
interventions and projects to raise 
awareness of and tackle domestic abuse.   

The Commissioner funds a number of projects specifically to address domestic abuse such 
as Turning the Spotlight, Step-Up, Petals Programme – Women’s Community Matters, an 
Integrated Independent Domestic and Sexual Abuse Crisis Support Service, Operation 
Encompass and Tough Love.   
 
Victim Support is commissioned to provide the Turning the Spotlight programme which 
works with perpetrators, victims and their families, using restorative principles to help 
service users better understand and maintain healthy relationships, reducing incidents of 
domestic abuse.  It is a ground-breaking initiative developed in Cumbria in 2015, and is 
accessible county-wide, either by self-referral or through referral from partners (such as 
Children’s Social Services) or the police.  During January 2018 to December 2018, the 
project supported 85 perpetrators of domestic abuse and 68 victims.  Children or young 
people were involved in 86% of cases.  The types of abuse(s) the perpetrator had 
committed when referred to the programme were as follows: 65% physical; 2.9% sexual; 
65% jealous and controlling behaviour and 50% harassment and stalking.  Following 
support from the project the number of clients perpetrating each type of abuse 
substantially reduced and the number of service users perpetrating at least one type of 
high severity abuse decreased.  Also, the reported level of risk to service users changed 
significantly.  One service users described how the programme has made them think 
differently about their relationship: “Made me realise that my relationship wasn’t as 
healthy as I may have thought it was originally.” 
 
The Commissioner has recently funded the specialist project Operation Encompass, 
following the successful pilot scheme in 2017.  Operation Encompass is designed to 
provide early reporting to schools of any domestic abuse incidents that occurs outside of 
school hours and might have an impact on a child attending the school the following day.  
It is a partnership between the Constabulary, Cumbria County Council, the local Children’s 
Safeguarding Hubs and schools.  This project is providing early, efficient trauma-informed 
support to children of domestic abuse across the county. 
 
Over 6,000 secondary school students are now more aware of coercive control and 
domestic abuse in teenage intimate relationships, having attended a Tough Love school 
performance during November and December 2018, funded by the Commissioner.    

Tackle domestic 
abuse early on to 

stop people 
suffering 

29



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioned a number of initiatives to 
raise awareness of hate crime. 

Raising awareness of hate incidents and hate crime, and giving both victims and witnesses 
the confidence to come forward and receive the support they need is important to the 
Commissioner.  Through his commissioning budget he has funded Alter Ego to deliver ‘Feel 
the Hate’, a bespoke Cumbrian educational theatre production delivered in secondary 
schools aimed at raising awareness of hate crime, its impact and where to go for help and 
advice.  The play was delivered in 50 schools across Cumbria during September and 
October 2018.  Feedback from schools has shown that young people now feel better 
informed about hate crime and that some schools are continuing to raise awareness in 
their lessons: 
“The production was excellent and I have nothing be praise for the actors.  Their 
enthusiasm and engagement with the students was great and provoked some good 
discussion, which several of the schools have taken forward into lessons.” 
 
“The performance last week was superb.  The pupils were transfixed and the talk 
afterwards was excellent.” 
 
“I’ve spoken to a lot of year 10 students who said it was really good and it’s had a really 
big impact.  If there was ever a chance of another performance I could show to year 9 
too, then I would bite your hand off.” 
 
The Commissioner has recently awarded Signal Film and Media to deliver a project aimed 
at raising awareness and addressing hate crime towards young people in Cumbria.  Signal 
Film and Media will harness the unique power of film and media to engage and educate 
both victims and potential offenders about what it means to be different and the 
underlying causes of hate crime.  The project will offer young people aged between 14 and 
19 years old the opportunity to attend a series of workshops where they can explore their 
values, identity and gender using creative film and media within a safe and supported 
forum.  It is expected this project will give participants a voice, strengthen their sense of 
self and increase their confidence. 

Address hate crime 
and make it clear it 

will not be tolerated 

30



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner has promoted the 
national Rural Reporting Line to 
encourage victims to come forward and 
report rural crime.  

Rural crime is not just about sheep worrying, farm machinery theft and deer poaching, it is 
any crime or antisocial behaviour experienced by people living in sparsely populated areas.  
This is why the Commissioner pledged to extend visible neighbourhood policing right 
across the county in both urban and rural areas.  How this is supporting local communities 
is highlighted under objective 2 ‘A Visible & Effective Police Presence’.  
 
In November 2018. the Commissioner attended the Penrith and District Farmers Mart’s 
Livestock Judging Event to promote the National Farmers Union (NFU) and Crimestoppers 
Rural Reporting Line, the specialist number dedicated to reporting rural crime 
anonymously.  He has also recently joined local police and the NFU to launch Country 
Watch South Lakes and Dales.  This scheme encourages reporting amongst the farming 
community and helps to increase the number of intelligence reports submitted to the 
police.    

Developing initiatives to reduce the 
impact of rural crime. 

The Commissioner is working with the Constabulary’s Rural Crime & Wildlife Coordinators 
and Local Focus Hub Inspectors to develop a number of rural crime initiatives aimed at 
reducing the impact of rural crime as well as supporting victims.  The implementation of 
these initiatives will start from April 2019.   

 
 
 

Continued to invest in community 
schemes which provide diversionary, 
positive and healthy activities for young 
people aimed at preventing and reducing 
incidents of antisocial behaviour.  
 

The Commissioner is very encouraged by the latest statistics that show that the number of 
antisocial behaviour incidents has fallen by 18.6% and youth antisocial behaviour by 
27.5%.  However, this does not mean the Commissioner is complacent.  He continues to 
invest in a number of schemes through his Property Fund and Community Fund to provide 
diversionary, positive and healthy activities for young people. 

 Aspatria Hornets to enable them to purchase new training equipment and train a 
number of new coaches to support their ever expanding junior section.   

 Egremont Youth Partnership to purchase material, shrubs and other horticultural 
items for their Youth Club to enable the renovation of an overgrown unused back 
yard area to be utilised as an outside learning zone with sensory garden.   

 Botcherby Community Association to deliver Summer Splash over the school 
holidays. 

 Furness Catholic Amateur Boxing Club to purchase equipment for the local boxing 
club.  Approximately 30 young adults attend the club each week. 
 

Be proactive in 
tackling antisocial 

behaviour 

Make it easy and 
effective to report 

crime and 
antisocial 
behaviour 

Address crime 
which affects 

people in rural 
parts of the county 

31



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

All concerns regarding antisocial 
behaviour that are raised directly with 
the Commissioner (QSPIs, public 
surgeries/events) are shared with the 
Constabulary for action. 

Where specific issues are raised these are passed to the Constabulary, via the Chief 
Constable’s Staff Office.  By sharing the information from the OPCC, the Constabulary is 
able to pinpoint areas of greatest concern to local communities and where necessary work 
with them and partner agencies to deal with the matter.  The Commissioner is informed of 
the specific measures put in place to address each individual case. 

Ethics Panel has recently dip-sampled 
calls into the Command and Control room 
to review quality of service. 

Ethics Panel members have sat with officers and staff within the Command and Control 
room, listening to live calls.  They have also listened to a random sample of pre-recorded 
calls.  Ethics Panel has concluded that the call handers delivered a good level of service, 
dealing with a wide range of issues.  The Commissioner was reassured that the 
Constabulary continues to provide a good level of service to those reporting crime through 
101 or 999.  The Constabulary also provides the public with weekly information on the 
time taken to answer 101/999 calls.   

Commenced the development of a new 
Eden Police Deployment Centre.  
 

In May 2018, building work on the New Eden Police Deployment Centre commenced with 
completion expected by this summer.  The replacement of Hunter Lane police station and 
the existing hostel accommodation at The Green were identified as priorities within the 
Constabulary’s Estates Strategy.  The new building will provide numerous benefits to the 
Constabulary, including progressive use of technology and better onsite parking facilities 
for visitors.  This future-proofed building will enable the Constabulary to exploit the 
continued advancement in technology, continuing to provide the best service to the public 
and making it easier for residents in surrounding areas to contact / interact with the police. 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 

The Commissioner has continued to 
invest in community schemes which aim 
to tackle alcohol and substance misuse. 

 
 

 
 

 

The Commissioner has recently funded The Well Project.  Working with the police and 
other agencies, this project is providing direct support right at the heart of Egerton Court 
(Barrow) where many of the residents experience problems such as substance misuse, 
mental health issues, housing instability and material poverty.  Community Inspector Jim 
Bailey states: “Financial support from our partners and the Police & Crime Commissioner 
has helped us build even stronger working relations.  It means funds are directed to the 
places with the greatest need and have the biggest impact.  The Local Focus Hub at 
Barrow and the work from The Well in Egerton Court project has been at the centre of 
this approach, making communities safer and thereby reducing demand for all for the 
long term.” 
 
The Commissioner has also supported The Carlisle Street Pastors to keep young people 
safe on nights out in the city centre.  The Street Pastors support vulnerable people 
experiencing the effects of excessive drinking, help night time revellers and support bar / 

Tackle alcohol and 
substance misuse, 

including new 
psychoactive 
substances 

Focus on serious and 
organised crime 

32



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

door staff, the police and paramedics. 
 
294 young people aged 16 and 17 years old in South Cumbria have a better understanding 
of the consequences of buying/taking drugs, the different types of drugs available, and 
how to manage the situation if a friend or peer is in trouble after taking drugs.  They have 
all attended a new psychoactive substance workshop delivered by Youth Engagement 
Services (South Lakeland CIC), funded by the Commissioner: “The session really made me 
think about the things we do as teenagers and how this can affect us later in life, I didn’t 
realise you could get in trouble for giving your mates drugs and I hadn’t really thought 
about where the drugs could have come from and the chance that they could be 
harmful.” 

Worked with partners to raise awareness 
of serious and organised crime. 
 

In partnership with the Constabulary and through Safer Cumbria, a Serious Organised 
Crime Event was held in June 2018 to brief partners on the threats to Cumbria posed by 
serious and organised crime and to secure the support of partners. 

The Commissioner regularly sees first-
hand how the Constabulary is working 
hard to tackle serious and organised 
crime. 

As described under objective 2 ‘A Visible & Effective Police Presence’ the Commissioner 
has been involved in a large scale operation targeting county lines drug supply activity in 
Barrow - Operation Horizon.  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 

Launched a Safer Driving Campaign in 
response to the public’s concerns. 

  

In December 2018, the Commissioner and the Chief Constable launched a year-long 
campaign to help keep Cumbria’s road safer, in response to what local residents tell them 
are one of their main concerns within their community.  Throughout this campaign, the 
Commissioner will be working with partners and local communities to highlight the many 
aspects of safer driving, focusing on a different theme each month.  In December, the 
Commissioner focused on the dangers of driving whilst under the influence of drink or 
drugs as the temptation to drive whilst over the alcohol limit can increase during this 
festive period.  Crimestoppers ran a campaign encouraging the public to speak up about 
regular drink driving using real life examples taken from information the charity has 
received at their UK Contact Centre -  

 A work colleague regularly driving home drunk after going to the pub from work. 

 A mum drunk on the school run. 
Crimestoppers received a record number of reports on drink driving for a month, had an 
increase in the number of reports regarding disqualified/uninsured drivers and other 
motoring offences. 

Target speeding and 
dangerous driving  

33



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

The Commissioner has: 

 Supported speedwatch initiatives 
empowering local communities to 
help prevent speeding in their area. 

 Attended local events to promote 
road safety, and regularly seen first-
hand how the Constabulary is 
working hard to deal with motorists 
who commit an offence. 

The Commissioner has provided funding to purchase three speed laser devices for use by 
local communities to tackle speeding vehicles in their areas.  He also attends many events 
to help promote road safety and has joined operational police officers to see first-hand 
how they deal with motorists who commit an offence.  For example, the Commissioner has 
joined the Constabulary to deliver a road safety presentation to year 13 pupils (aged 17 
and 18 years old) at Queen Elizabeth Grammar School, and joined the Constabulary’s 
Mobile Support Group out on patrol across the county to see how they deal with those 
who commit an offence whilst behind the wheel.    

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 

Supported initiatives/projects to deliver 
programmes that protect vulnerable 
people from online crime. 

Increasingly people live their lives online, whether it be through their mobile phone, tablet 
or computer.  This is changing the way that criminals target individuals, businesses and 
communities.  In June 2017, the Commissioner funded and launched a three-year cyber-
proficiency programme, with ‘Get Safe Online’ who are specialists in the field of cyber 
security to work with the three Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) to deliver the 
programme across the county.  More information about this programme is presented 
under objective 6 ‘Focus our Police on Online and Sexual Crime’. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Protect the 
vulnerable and 

elderly from crime 
e.g. cyber and 

online  34



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

The Commissioner has pledged in his Police and Crime Plan to work with the local community, the police and partner agencies to ensure offenders face a 
consequence for their crime.  Everyone has a right to feel safe in their home and in their community.  When that safety is threatened, those responsible 
should face a swift, effective and appropriate response that seeks to address underlying offending behaviour, protect the public and reduce reoffending.   

 
Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 

Through the Public Accountability 
Conference, the Constabulary has 
informed the Commissioner on how 
offenders are being managed in the 
community. 

Through the Public Accountability Conferences the Commissioner is kept fully and 
regularly briefed by the Constabulary on how offenders are managed in the community.  
The Commissioner is reassured through this process that the Constabulary is effectively 
managing offenders, including prolific offenders and those that pose a significant risk. 
 
Staff from the OPCC also attend the Constabulary’s monthly Tasking & Coordination 
meetings which provides further assurance as to how the Constabulary is managing 
offenders and is working with partners to ensure Cumbria remains a safe county. 
 
 

 
 
 

Continued to invest in support services 
that give victims a voice in the way the 
police deal with lower level offences and 
antisocial behaviour. 
 

The Commissioner funds Remedi, a not-for-profit company to provide restorative justices 
services across Cumbria.  Restorative Justice gives victims the chance to meet with or write 
to the person who commitment the crime so they can explain the impact it has had upon 
them and others close to them.  They are able to ask questions and gain answers which 
can provide them with a degree of closure.  Going through the restorative justice meeting 
has also been proven to have more impact on some offenders than a prison sentence or a 
court punishment alone.  Between April 2018 and December 2018, Remedi has facilitated 
53 victim and offender face to face conferences and 22 indirect interventions (i.e. the 
exchange of letters). 

The OPCC has chaired the Out of Court 
Disposal Scrutiny Panel. 

The Out of Court Scrutiny Panel provides the Commissioner with visibility of how the 
Constabulary is administering out of court disposals.  The panel is chaired by the OPCC and 
is made up of representatives from across the criminal justice system and victim support 
services who meet three times a year.  It provides transparency and accountability in how 
the Constabulary uses out of court disposals, with particular focus on the delivery of 
appropriate and proportionate justice. 

Manage offenders 
in the community 
after release from 
prison or a court 

sentence 

Gives victims the 
chance to meet with 

or write to the 
person who 

committed the crime 
/ make sure victims 

given the 
opportunity to say 

how offender should 
make amends for 
lower level crimes  

 

35



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

 
In 2018, the panel reviewed 92 cases across the three meetings.  Overall findings from the 
panel indicate that officers are showing a high degree of professionalism when 
investigating crimes and considering the appropriate disposal to the severity of offending 
and type of offence, and are taking into account the views of the victim when deciding to 
exercise an out of court disposal.  Specific vulnerable groups including Looked After 
Children and those with mental health issues featured in a number of cases, it was clear 
that officers had considered the most appropriate and effective outcome when reaching a 
decision.  The panel also found that there was a high level of decision making rationale in 
those cases involving young people. 
 
In some cases presented to the panel, members raised concerns with how the outcome 
was recorded or disagreed with the outcome entirely.  In all cases where issues were 
raised, guidance and advice was feedback to the officer and decision marker, which has 
then contributed to training and improvements in the Constabulary’s policies.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Putting victims first is at the heart of the Commissioners role.  He has a significant, statutory responsibility for commissioning local services for victims of 
crime, as well as a wider responsibility for victim’s referral and assessment services.  Crime and abuse can have a significant and often long-lasting impact 
on the lives of those affected by it.  This can vary from person to person depending on their own circumstances and support network.  The Commissioner 
therefore funds a number of services which can provide support to those affected based on their needs. 
 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commissioned a range of support 
services to deliver interventions and 
projects to support victims of serious 
crime and victims who are vulnerable. 

A key service is the current Victim Support core service, whose role is to contact victims of 
crime who have reported to the police, conduct a needs assessment to identify what 
support the person needs and provide appropriate information and help from a package of 
services.  An enhanced service is also provided for victims of serious crime and vulnerable 
and persistently targeted victims in line with the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime. 
Services users are asked about a number of aspects of their well-being when first entering 
the service and before their support ends to measure the impact it has had.  Overall, 
service users reported an improvement in their experience of the criminal justice system, 
in how safe they feel, in reintegration into their normal life and, particularly, in their health 
and well-being. 
 
CASE STUDY  - victim of sexual abuse  
A young male who disclosed sexual abuse perpetrated by his mum’s ex-partner’s son when 
they lived together.  Due to the length of time between the incident and reporting it, the 
police were unfortunately unable to gather sufficient evidence to charge and the case was 
NFA.  The young male felt anxious that the case was not going to proceed as there was 
nothing in place to protect him from future contact with the perpetrator.  He was 
contacted by Victim Support and given on-going emotional support and referred to 
counselling.  Practical advice was also given including a personal alarm so that he felt safer 
when out with friends.  Both he and his mum have said “they feel like they are supported 
and feel more believed.” 
 
283 victims of domestic abuse and sexual abuse have been supported through the 
Integrated Independent Domestic Abuse & Sexual Abuse Crisis Support Service, helping 

Support and give 
funds, where 

appropriate to 
organisations 

offering help and 
support services 
for more serious 

crimes and 
vulnerable victims 

37



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

victims to protect themselves, and those close to them, and prevent further abuse.  This 
service commenced 1st May 2018 and is commissioned by the OPCC and Cumbria County 
Council to provide support, practical help and advocacy to victims of domestic abuse and 
victims of rape and serious sexual assault.  It also provides a 24 hour-a-day support line 
meaning that people can always get in touch for support.  The Integrated Independent 
Domestic Abuse & Sexual Abuse Crisis Support Service forms one part of The Bridgeway 
package of support for victims of sexual assault and abuse, which also includes the 
forensic-medical examination service, 24/7 helpline and crisis workers and counselling. 
Between January 2018 and December 2018, The Bridgeway service supported a total of 
259 people: 

 39% of clients were under 18 years of age. 

 57% of clients were referred by the Police. 

 153 examinations were offered to clients. 
 

Clients were referred to a multitude of agencies for follow-on support. These included the 
sexual health service, mental health services, the client’s GP, and hospital for further care.  
The feedback from service users is overwhelming positive and shows how the service has 
supported them: 

“I felt really well cared for and looked after at the Bridgeway and couldn't have asked for 
more.  Thank you.” 

“Amazing support. Made me feel comfortable and able to talk.  Everything was 

explained on a level which was respectful and friendly.” 
 

“I thought the time spent in the Bridgeway was fantastic especially for the child. The 

examination was very respectful + professional.” 
 

“We were treated with the upmost respect from the moment we arrived to leaving. 

Everything was fully explained clearly to us.” 

 Working with partners to create a 
‘gateway’ for victims of crime and 
antisocial behaviour to access services 
(The Victims Hub).  

The Commissioner is working with funding partners Cumbria County Council, the 
Constabulary, NHS England and Local District Councils, and other agencies, to develop the 
support available for people who have been affected by crime and abuse by bringing 
together a number of services, previously commissioned separately, to create a ‘gateway’ 

38



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance 

through which people can access emotional, practical and advocacy support services 
quickly.  This will enhance people’s experience of getting help by having a focus on the 
development of the pathway to support, with the aspiration of providing the ‘right support 
by the right person’.    

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Hosted a visited from the Victims’ 
Commissioner Baroness Newlove at the 
Women’s Community Matters Premises 
in Barrow.  

In July 2018, the Commissioner hosted a visit from the Victims’ Commissioner Baroness 
Newlove.  Baroness Newlove was able to see first-hand how victims of crime are being 
supported in Cumbria and meet with a number of victims to hear their stories and 
experiences.  This provided some valuable feedback for the Baroness to help inform her 
work.  

Employs a Victims Advocate to consult 
directly with people who have 
experienced crime and antisocial and 
with the agencies who work with them. 

Last year, the Commissioner’s Victim’s Advocate continued to champion the cause for 
victims, and importantly, help drive up standards:  The Victims Advocate: 

 Was involved in all initial officer training, using real life examples to raise 
awareness of the impact and ripple affects of crime, and provide information and 
insight into the support services available for victims.  

 Worked with Cumbria County Council to dip-sample high and medium risk 
domestic abuse cases referred into Victims Support to evaluate the quality of 
service provided. 

 Worked closely with the Constabulary to inform the development of their new 
Victims Booklet – ‘Putting Victims First’.   

 Evaluated responses from criminal justice agencies involved in Cumbria’s Quality 
Assessment Framework which measures compliance against the Victims Code of 
Practice.  

 Reviewed and developed further the Cumbria Together Website which provides 
guidance & advice for victims for crime and antisocial behaviour. 

 Co-ordinated and chaired the quarterly Victims & Witnesses Consultation Group, 
made up of individuals who have been a victim of crime or antisocial behaviour.  
The group provides first hand feedback on their personal experience and acts as a 
sound board for potential service developments, such as the Victims Hub.   

Makes sure that 
agencies who work 

with victims of 
crime meet 

national standards 
(the national Code 

of Practice for 
Victims of Crime)  

Listen to and stand 
up for the rights of 

victims  

39



 

 

Conducted a second Quality Assessment 
Framework Audit, monitoring compliance 
against the Code of Practice for Victims of 
Crime. 
 
 

In 2017, A Victims Quality Assessment Framework was introduced, which was developed 
with support from the OPCC, Safer Cumbria and Victim Support.  It provides a tool to 
evaluate compliance against the Victims’ Code of Practice against all criminal justice 
agencies.  In 2018, a second audit was completed, identifying that criminal justice agencies 
are continuing to develop their services to support victims.  A task-force was set up and 
work is been carried out around Victim Personal Statements and pre-trial visits.  In 
addition work is ongoing to develop the framework before the next audit takes place.  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 

 
 

Supported the Multi-agency Crisis 
Assessment Service (MACAS). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner is committed to making it ‘quicker and easier for people who are having 
a mental health crisis to be taken to a place of safety and to a suitable service’.  The OPCC 
secured Home Office funding towards setting up a Multi-agency Crisis Assessment Service 
(MACAS) with a number of partner agencies.  This set up a SPA (Single Point of Access) line 
for the police & other partner agencies, providing crisis support telephone-based triage by 
mental health professionals for individuals who appear to be having a mental health crisis.  
An evaluation conducted by UCLAN last year found that this had improved access to 
mental health services and improved police decision making through greater access to 
information on the person involved.  The initiative has also supported the developed of a 
unit which provides assessment and short-term in-patient care for those in mental health 
crisis, enabling swifter access to services and helping to reduce the number of people 
needing to be moved by the police to a place of safety.  The UCLAN evaluation highlighted 
a reduction in the use of custody as a place of safety and in the time taken by police 
officers to deal with the case. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Make it quicker 
and easier to get 
people who are 
having a mental 

health crisis to be 
taken to a place of 

safety and a 
suitable service  40



 

 

 
 
 
 

The Commissioner recognises that criminals are now widely using the internet and technology to commit many types of crime.  These include grooming and 
offences committed where a person meets someone they did not previously know online, as well as identity theft, credit card and similar fraud and virus 
and similar attacks which affect the functionality of a device or IT system.   
 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 

Continue to commission ‘Get Safe Online’ 
to deliver a package of awareness 
training and advice interventions to reach 
members of the community across the 
county. 

Over 750 people are now better informed about online safe having successfully completed 
a Get Safe Online community awareness training session, funded by the Commissioner.  
The sessions aim to help protect participants against fraud, identity theft, viruses and 
other security threats, as well as wider safety issues related to meeting people online.  12 
sessions are held per year across the county, organised by the Community Safety 
Partnerships (CSPs) on behalf of the Commissioner.  Feedback from the sessions have been 
overwhelmingly positive, with participants reporting that they feel more able to spot a 
cyber-crime attempt as a result of the training.  One delegate’s feedback sums up what 
many others have reported: “Fantastic, I consider myself tech savvy, but have learned 
new ways to protect myself”.  The training is designed with the intention that attendees 
will pass on what they learn to others to help protect them and feedback received has 
indicated that participants are sharing their knowledge with family and friends.  The OPCC 
and CSPs are working with Get Safe Online to continually improve the relevance and reach 
of the sessions. 
 
To further raise public awareness of online safety the Commissioner hosted a two-day 
event in the centre of Workington’s shopping area in June 2018, during which hundreds of 
local people engaged with experts from Get Safe Online, NatWest and Lloyds banks, O2 
and Kaspersky and thousands were given information leaflets.  The Mini Police from 
Victoria Junior School carried out a survey with members of the public to gauge how safe 
they were online.  This also provided an opportunity to develop the children’s 
understanding of safe practices. 
 

Help members of 
the public to be 

aware of the risk of 
online crimes and 
keep themselves 

safe online  

41



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

 The Constabulary and OPCC are also increasing people’s safety online through public 
information and marketing campaigns via social media.  The reach of these messages is 
significant as both organisations have many Facebook and Twitter followers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 

Continue to invest in schemes aimed at 
safeguarding children from sexual crime. 

As described earlier, the Commissioner works with a range of partner agencies including 
health and local authorities to commission a package of support services for victims of 
sexual abuse and assault.  The main services are provided under the Bridgeway. 

42



 

 

 
 
 

The Commissioner has funded a number 
of initiatives aimed at preventing child 
sexual exploitation and sexual abuse. 

In October 2018, the Commissioner agreed to further fund the Brathay Trust ‘Be SAVY’ (Be 
Safe and Value Yourself) until 2021 following success of a two year pilot.  The project 
provides young people who are identified as being vulnerable to sexual exploitation to 
undertake a group programme which builds their self-confidence, develops an 
understanding of what makes healthy relationships and how to identify grooming, as well 
as giving them healthy coping strategies.  In 2016-2017, 31 girls took part in the 
programme delivered in Barrow and Whitehaven.  An evaluation of the programme 
showed that the majority of participants reported that they ‘know what a healthy 
relationship looks like’ (82%) and feel that they can ‘sort out problems I might have’ (88%).  
With further funding from the Commissioner, the programme can now be delivered to a 
further 9 cohorts working with young people aged between 12 and 17 years old.  
 
Over 6,400 students are now better informed to recognise the signs of grooming and the 
dangers associated with sexual exploitation having attended the theatre production 
Chelsea’s Choice in their school during February and March 2018.  The Commissioner has 
funded this performance to be delivered again in February and March 2019 following 
positive feedback from both students and teachers.  The feedback showed that the 
production had made a significant impression on its viewers, generated lots of discussion 
and made the topic of grooming easier to discuss.  It also resulted in a number of 
disclosures by young people. 
“The students and staff thought the performance of Chelsea’s Choice was fantastic.  It 
was hard hitting and left many students discussing the topics for a good few days in 
classes across the school.  Students were engaged and asked relevant questions.  They 
thought it was useful and were shocked how drawn in they became and how strongly 
they felt for the characters.  They especially valued the feedback session at the end of the 
performance.” 
 
 
 
 
 

Prevent grooming, 
child sexual 

exploitation and 
sexual abuse   

Support services 
for victims of 
sexual crime, 

including child 
sexual exploitation 

and encourage 
more people to 
come forward   

43



 

 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Through the Public Accountability 
Conference, the Constabulary has 
informed the Commissioner of how it is 
managing online crime. 

Through the Public Accountability Conferences the Commissioner is kept fully and 
regularly briefed by the Constabulary of how it is managing online crime.  Staff from the 
OPCC also attend the Constabulary’s monthly Tasking & Coordination Meetings which 
helps to provide further assurance, including how the Constabulary is working with 
partners (i.e. the North West Regional Organised Crime Unit) to ensure Cumbria remains a 
safe county. 
 

Secured additional revenue to increase 
capacity to deal with online crimes.  

Following public consultation on the council tax precept in 2018, the Commissioner was 
able to support the Constabulary to increase resource in it Digital Media Investigation Unit 
to ensure capacity and capability to deal with the continuing rise in cyber related crime. 
 

 
 
 

 

 
The Commissioner and Chief Constable continue to seek ways in which they can increase efficiency in order to protect the people of Cumbria and provide 
them with the best possible policing service. 
 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner has used the results of 
the public consultation on setting the 
council tax percept to influence and set 
the budget for the financial year 2018-
2019.  He has also recently agreed the 
budget for 2019-2020. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

On 21st February 2018, following public consultation, the Commissioner and Chief 
Constabulary agreed the revenue and capital budget for 2018-2019 and the level of council 
tax to support the budget (this is described earlier in this report).    
 
This year, the financial position remains challenging.  For 2019/2020, the Minister of State 
for Policing and Fire has again, allowed PCCs further flexibility to increase council tax  
without the requirement to undertake a local referendum.  In the funding announcement 
he gave PCCs the ability to increase the band D precept by up to £24 (for 2018-2019 the 
flexibility was given to increase by £12).  The Commissioner has undertaken consultation 
on the budget.  A total of 2,161 individuals responded to the survey, with 70.15% 
supporting the proposal to increase council tax by the maximum allowed amount of just 
under £24.  In return for this higher level increase in the council tax precept for policing, 
the Commissioner has sustained his investment of 25 extra police officers last year and will 
further increase the number of police officers by 20 this year. 
 

Make sure the Police 
have up-to-date 

information on crimes 
committed online and 
that they are able to 

deal with this    

Fight hard to protect 
the budget for policing 

in Cumbria  

Stand up for Cumbria 
having its own police 

force 

44



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

 
 

The Commissioner continues to represent Cumbria at a regional and national level, as do 
staff in the OPCC.  During 2018-2019, the Commissioner has been the chair of the North 
West Meeting of Police & Crime Commissioners and Chief Executives, chair of the North 
West Joint Oversight Committee, and attends the Association of Police & Crime 
Commissioners (APCC) national meetings.  The OPCC Chief Executive and Deputy Chief 
Executive attend national meetings of the Association of Police & Crime Commissioner 
Chief Executives (APACE).  This enables the Commissioner to represent and lobby the 
needs of Cumbria at a national level. 

 
 

 

The Commissioner ensures the 
Constabulary is spending its money 
wisely through his accountability 
framework. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Commissioner each year sets out his requirements in relation to management of 
finances in an annual ‘Funding Arrangement’ with the Chief Constable.  In relation to in 
year spending, the Commissioner receives at his quarterly Public Accountability 
Conferences revenue and capital budget monitoring reports which detail expenditure in 
year against the budget.  The Commissioner will seek explanations for, and hold the Chief 
Constable to account for, areas of variance against the budget. 
 
In relation to budget setting, the Financial Services team prepare the financial budget 
using a ‘zero based budgeting’ approach which seeks to establish what is actually needed 
in individual budgets for the following year.  Once initial budget submissions have been 
developed the Constabulary hold a series of ‘Budget Star Chambers’ meetings which 
provide an opportunity for Chief Officers, Directors and the Joint Chief Finance Officer to 
hold budget holders to account and challenge budget submissions.  Through this process, 
areas of saving and potential efficiencies are identified. 
 
In addition to this, the Commissioner gains further assurance from HMICFRS.  As described 
under objective two ‘A Visible & Effective Police Presence’, the Constabulary has been 
rated as ‘GOOD’ on how efficient it is in keeping people safe and reducing crime, 
specifically in these areas: 

 It’s understanding of demand. 

 It’s use of resources to manage demand. 

 It’s planning for future demand. 

Make sure the 
Police are working 

as efficiently  

Represent what 
Cumbria needs with 

national Government   

45



 

 

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 

Through the Blue Light Collaboration 
Programme a number of activities have 
been implemented to enable shared 
services and joint working. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Commissioner has negotiated a collaboration agreement and governance structure 
between Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service, the Constabulary and 
the North West Ambulance Service to develop work streams around Blue Light 
Collaboration.  The Commissioner chairs the Blue Light Collaboration Executive Leaders 
Board which oversees the work. 
 
To date, a number of work streams have been undertaken: 

 A six month trial is currently ongoing around shared tasking and co-ordination 
between Cumbria Rescue & Fire Service and the Constabulary to co-ordinate 
activity on a daily and monthly basis.   

 Scoped and evaluated opportunities around a Joint Command and Control Centre 
for Cumbria, concluding that this is not a viable option at the moment.   

 The Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service are now integrated within the Local Focus Hubs 
across the county. 

 Plans are in place to enable the Constabulary and North West Ambulance Service 
to initially access up to seven Cumbria Fire & Rescue Service premises in rural 
areas across the county.  This will provide a rural base for these agencies, reducing 
the need to travel back to their initial deployment centre.   

 Ongoing trial of two Joint Emergency Services Officers (JESO), one in the south of 
the county and one in the west.  This role fulfils the function of a PSCO and an on 
call fire fighter.  This is currently been evaluated.    

 Three Joint Incident Command Unit Vehicles are being utilised across the county at 
public events and can be used for major incidents.  An evaluation is currently been 
undertaken to identify the benefits of these. 

 A pilot in the north of the county has been implemented involving Cumbria Fire & 
Rescue Service assisting the Constabulary in locating vulnerable missing persons in 
urban areas. 

 Shared training opportunities have been identified which will allow each 
organisation to offer training places to partners. 

 Work is currently been undertaken around a share approach to volunteering and 
young people. 

 
 
 
 

Look at how we can 
work with the Fire 

Service to make 
services better    

46



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
It is essential that we listen to children and young people across all communities.  It is by hearing their voices that we can act accordingly and deliver a 
service that meets their needs. 

 
Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Working with local 
communities, the police 
and partner agencies to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Continued to work with the Youth 
Commission to enable young people to 
be involved in producing and developing 
solutions they feel will best meet their 
needs.  

The Youth Commission continues to deliver projects across the county linking in with their 
priorities: drink driving, abusive relationships, child exploitation and new psychoactive 
substance.  Some of the work includes: 

 The production of a hard hitting awareness video for drink and drug driving.  The 
release of the video coincided with the Commissioner drink driving campaign in 
December 2018.   

 Developed a video to raise awareness of child sexual exploitation (CSE) which will 
be launched in time for the national CSE awareness day on the 18th March 2019. 

 Developed a mobile mural to be displayed at various events to raise awareness of 
young people and healthy relationships.  This is currently being displayed at the 
Forum in Barrow.  

 Working as an advisory group with the Longtown Community Alcohol Project as 
the voice of young people in rural and isolated areas.   

A review of the Youth Commission has recently been carried out to identify the impact the 
project has had on the young people involved.  In summary, the Youth Commission has 
provided a rewarding experience for young people, improving their confidence and sense 
of personal value, as well as developing their understanding further of the issues faced by 
young people across Cumbria:  
 

 Improved confidence around other young people  
“I have learned that I have the ability to speak confidently in public especially to those in 
positions of power who are older than me.” 

 

 Increased sense of personal value  
“Sometimes I’ve felt like I have nothing to offer…like I’m pointless. This project has 
helped me see that I have got lots to offer and I’m proud of what I’ve done so far. 
 

Set up a Youth 
Commission to get 

young people’s 
feedback and 

engage them in 
helping to prevent 

and fight crime 

47



 

 

Our Areas of Focus What We Have Done A Summary of Performance  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“I learned to be even more open to other people’s opinions and to have confidence in 
myself and believe that I can make a difference.” 
 

 Improved awareness  
“Following the questionnaires, we found that many people chose to drink or take drugs 
because they were bored… which is something we can easily change by talking to the 
council to implement more activities etc.” 
 

 Enhanced knowledge & experience relating to future career choices 
 “I wanted to do something that would benefit helping me do something in the public 
services as this is a future career that I hope to pursue, so far I think it has been 
rewarding and I have learned a lot. I also used this as my college placement and feel I 
have been given opportunities that I wouldn’t normally be offered.”  
 

 Provided a value and rewarding experience 
“The Young Commissioners sampled feel empowered…they are proud of their outputs as 
a Commission and their development as a group has been a valuable and rewarding 
experience.” 

Improve how the 
Police interact with 

young people  

Support activities 
which provide 

positive 
opportunities for 
young people or 
which prevent 

young people from 
turning to a life of 

crime 

48



 

 

The Commissioner regularly sees first-
hand how the Constabulary is delivering 
and developing its Citizen’s in Policing 
Project, including the Mini Police and 
Police Cadet Scheme.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Following the launch of Cumbria’s Mini Police in 2018, participant schools and Mini Police 
Officers have taken part in everything from road safety patrols, local litter picks, 
educational talks on county lines drug dealing to supporting local events, including the 
Tour of Britain.  Cumbria currently has 26 member schools, with new intakes planned for 
this year.  The Police Cadets scheme is providing opportunities for young people to be 
involved in policing, giving them a chance to be heard and inspiring them to participate 
positively in their communities.  Both schemes have been extremely well received and the 
work being undertaken is outstanding.  Students, teachers and all those involved have 
shown enthusiasm and initiative which is positively impacting on local communities.  This 
is evident in the examples of work described below: 
 
In January 2019, the Cumbria Mini Police Programme recruited five new officers from 
Jigsaw Hospice.  The officers will take part in a programme of activities throughout the 
year which has been created in collaboration with Jigsaw staff and the Citizen’s in Policing 
team.  The programme has been tailored-made for the new recruits and focuses on 
positive engagement with police officers and the local community. 
 
The Mini Police launched a road safety initiative in January 2019.  This initiative, which has 
been financially supported by the Casualty Reduction and Safer Highways (CRASH) multi-
agency group, provides uniquely designed road safety signs, the first of its kind in the UK, 
for Cumbria Mini Police schools to use in their road safety awareness campaigns.  The Mini 
Police decide where the signs are located and also speak to people outside their schools 
about anti-social road use and the affects it has on the their school.  This is supported by 
PCSOs who are delivering road safety lessons. 
 
The Police Cadets have been learning first-hand what the police and other emergency 
services do, from major incident planning, road safety, writing a witness statement and 
learning life saver skills. 

Supported initiatives / projects to deliver 
programmes that provide positive 
opportunities for young people 

Throughout this report are many examples of the funding awards the Commissioner has 
provided through his Property and Community Fund to support young people.  A full 
breakdown is provided on the OPCC website at http://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-
do/funding 

 
 

49

http://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding
http://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 25 March 2019 

From:  Monitoring Officer (Cumbria County Council) 

 

 

UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report advises members of any complaints received in 
accordance with the Panel’s complaints procedure.  The 

report outlines where appropriate, what, if any, action has 
been taken in respect of the complaints. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members are asked to note the report. 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

3.1 At the meeting on 15 October 2018 the Panel agreed to adopt a 

revised complaints procedure to consider non-criminal complaints 
in relation to the Police and Crime Commissioner or other office 

holders. 

3.2 The Procedure  

3.2.1 As part of the revised procedure, the Monitoring Officer of 

Cumbria County Council will consider all complaints matters in 
the initial stages.  If the Monitoring Officer cannot broker a 

resolution, a sub-committee of the Panel should be convened to 
consider the matter further. 

51

Agenda Item 9



 

3.2.2 The Panel will receive a report to each meeting detailing the 

position with all ongoing complaints, and requesting a sub-
committee be convened if appropriate.   

4.0 DETAILS OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 

4.1 As at the date of this report, there are no ongoing complaints. 

 

 
Iolanda Puzio 

Monitoring Officer, Cumbria County Council 
 

March 2019 
  

 
 

APPENDICES 

 
None 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

No background papers  
 

 
Contact: Ben Spencer 

E-mail: ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk 
Telephone: 07919 297914 

 

52

mailto:ben.spencer@cumbria.gov.uk


CUMBRIA POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

Meeting date: 25 March 2019 

From: Senior Manager – Policy and Scrutiny 

PANEL UPDATE REPORT 

 

1.0  PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 This report updates the Police and Crime Panel on: 
 

 Key issues and developments that have occurred since the 
last meeting on the 21st January 2019 including 

o Progress on actions agreed at the October Panel 

meeting. 
o National policy developments. 

o The Panel’s work programme. 

2.0  ISSUES FOR THE PANEL 

2.1 Note the range of activity set out in the report and highlight, if 

required, issues that they would like more information on. 

2.2  Note the work programme provided in Appendix 1 and provide 

suggestions for future topics or items for consideration by the Panel. 

3.0  BACKGROUND 

Progress on actions agreed at the January Panel Meeting: 

3.1 The focus of the last Police and Crime Panel meeting in 21st January 
focussed on policing Council tax precept and budget reporting.  

There were no new actions resulting from the meeting. 

4.0 HORIZON SCANNING 

This section of the report provides members with an 
overview of some of the key issues with implications for 

policing and community safety in the near future. 

 

 

 

53

Agenda Item 10



RECOMMENDATION 

4.1 The Panel is asked to consider the content of this section of the 

report, and highlight, if required, issues that they would like more 
information on. 

4.2 Outlined below are key issues of particular importance to the Police 
and Crime Panel: 

 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Policing and Fire and Rescue 
Services (HMICFRS) Draft Policing Inspection Programme 

2019/20 
 Counter-Terrorism and Border Security Act 

 Independent Review of Prevent Programme 
 Draft Domestic Abuse Bill 

 Serious Violence update 
 Modern Slavery Act review interim report 

 Consultation on unauthorised encampments 

HMICFRS Draft Policing Inspection Programme 2019/20 

4.3 On 8 February, Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire 

and Rescue Services published the draft policing inspection 
programme and framework for 2019/20.  

4.4 The inspection will comprise of:- 

 national thematic inspections; 

 joint inspections; 
 integrated PEEL assessments; 

 inspections of other national law enforcement agencies; 
 commissions from the Home Secretary, and police and crime 

commissioners and other local policing bodies; and 
 HMICFRS’s work on super-complaints 

4.5 HMICFRS have consulted on the draft programme, and will release 
their final inspection programme in the coming months. 

Counter Terrorism and Border Security Act 

4.6 On 12 February, the Counter-Terrorism and Border Security Act, 
which updates the Counter-Terrorism Act 2015, received Royal 

Assent and thus was enshrined in law. 

4.7 The government’s intention is for the 2019 act to better reflect the 

digital age, ensure sentencing for certain terrorism offences reflect 
the severity of the crimes and disrupt terrorist activity more rapidly. 

4.8 The main provisions in the 2019 act include a requirement for 
terrorist offenders to provide additional information to the police in 

line with registered sex offenders; and a new power to stop, 
question, search and detain an individual at a port or border area to 

determine if they have been involved in hostile state activity. 

54



Independent Review of Prevent Programme 

4.9 On 22 January, the Home Office announced an independent review 
of the Prevent Programme, following amendments to the Counter-

Terrorism and Border Security Bill 2019. Prevent was launched in 
2003 as part of the government’s counter-terrorism strategy. 

4.10 There have been numerous calls to examine the techniques adopted 
through the Prevent programme due to community cohesion 

concerns. 

4.11 An independent Prevent Review Panel will be established within the 

next six months to examine the existing strategy, and propose 
recommendations. 

Draft Domestic Abuse Bill 

4.12 On 21 January, the government published the draft Domestic Abuse 

Bill. The draft bill’s aim is to better support domestic abuse victims, 
their families and pursuing offenders. 

4.13 The main provisions of the draft bill include the following: 

 Government definition of domestic abuse to include economic 
abuse and manipulative non-physical abuse; 

 Establish a Domestic Abuse Commissioner to drive the 
response to domestic abuse issues; 

 Introduce Domestic Abuse Protection Orders; 
 Prohibit the cross-examination of victims by their abusers in 

the family courts 

Serious Violence update 

4.14 Following recent knife crime incidents nationally, the Home 
Secretary has engaged with Chief Officers from the seven police 

forces most affected. The APCC has emphasised that the reduction 
of over 20,000 police officers since 2010 in conjunction with cuts to 

youth services has created a ‘toxic mix’. Although under 
consideration, no additional funds have yet been committed as a 

result. 

4.15 On 22 February, the government released from the Supporting 
Families against Youth Fund £9.8m for 21 community-backed 

projects, which help families who are vulnerable to the effects of 
knife crime and gang culture. 

4.16 The National Crime Agency (NCA) released an assessment of the 
county line drugs trade, which showed the industry is worth £500m. 

It also identified the number of individual phone numbers being 
used on county lines networks at 2,000 – almost three times the 

720 previously established. 

 

55



4.17 The St Giles Trust, a charity which supports young people caught up 

in reoffending, released a Home Office-commissioned report, 
recommending that Ofsted should radically change its approach on 

how it assesses schools to take into account children becoming part 
of county lines drug dealing. The report focussed on the Home 

Office-funded pilot in which 38 children were given one-to-one 
casework support, and it found 85% were effectively helped by 

either leaving county lines gangs or decreasing their activity. 

Modern Slavery Independent Review Interim Report 

4.18 On 22 January, the second interim report examining the Modern 
Slavery Act 2015 was released. Focusing on transparency in supply 

chains, it recommended that government should operate a 
repository of all modern slavery statements, and compliance with 

this be reviewed annual by the Anti-Slavery Commissioner. 

4.19 The report also recommended that companies designate a board 

member with overall responsibility for the statement, and that new 

offences, fines and a public-sector procurement ban be placed on 
companies and individuals for non-compliance. 

4.20 On 22 February, it was announced that Sara Thornton, the current 
Chair of the National Police Chiefs Council (NPCC), will take up the 

role of the Independent Anti-Slavery Commissioner. The role 
includes promoting an improved law enforcement and criminal 

justice response to modern slavery across the UK, and driving 
effective prevention of slavery and human trafficking offences.  

Consultation on Unauthorised Encampments 

4.21 On 1 February, the Home Office, along with Ministry of Housing 

Communities and Local Government and the Ministry of Defence, in 
February released the government’s response to the consultation on 

dealing with unauthorised developments and encampments. 

4.22 The government’s response made it clear that it intends to consult 

on the following proposals to amend the Criminal Justice and Public 

Order Act 1994, to enable the police to intervene and remove 
travellers from private land and: 

 Lower the number of vehicles needed to be involved in an illegal 
camp before police can act from 6 to 2; 

 Give the police powers to direct travellers to sites in 

neighbouring local authorities. Currently they can only direct 
trespassers to sites in the same area; 

 Allow officers to remove trespassers from camping on or beside 
a road; 

 Increase the time - from 3 months to a year - during which 

travellers are not allowed to return to a site they have already 
been removed from. 

56



5.0 FORTHCOMING MEETINGS AND DATES 

5.1 Dates and information are provided below for meetings that may be 

of interest to Panel Members. The meetings are generally held at 
Carleton Hall, Penrith at 10.00am unless otherwise stated. 

5.2 An agenda for each of the public meetings will be published 5 
working days prior to the meeting date. Minutes and appropriate 

reports will be published following the meeting.  

5.3 The upcoming Public Accountability Conference meetings are as 

follows: 

 27th March 

 9th May 
 25th July 

 25th September 

Joint Audit Committee 

5.4  The Joint Audit Committee is composed of four members that 

meet five times throughout the year in line with the 
recommendations of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA).  The next meetings are: 

 23rd May 19 

 25th Jul 19 
 19th Sep 19 

 20th Nov 19 

Ethics and Integrity Panel 

5.5 The purpose of the panel is to provide a forum which challenges, 
encourages and supports the Police and Crime Commissioner and 

the Chief Constable in monitoring and dealing with integrity and 
ethical issues within each organisation. 

5.6 The panel, which meets on a quarterly basis, therefore acts as a 
robust, independent and transparent system of oversight of the way 

complaints and misconduct allegations are made against police 

officers and staff are handled and investigated by the police. As the 
Panel is not a public committee, papers are available after meetings 

on the following webpage: https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-
do/ethics-integrity-panel/.  

Community Safety Partnership meetings 

5.7  North Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 

 21 May 2019, 2pm, Carlisle East Community Fire Station 
 10 September 2019, 2pm, Carleton Hall 

 3 December 2019, 2pm, Carlisle East Community Fire Station 

 

57

https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/ethics-integrity-panel/
https://cumbria-pcc.gov.uk/what-we-do/ethics-integrity-panel/


South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 

 9 April 2019, 10:30am, Kendal Town Hall 

West Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 

Dates to be confirmed with Panel 

6.0 CONCLUSION 

6.1 The Police and Crime Panel are invited to consider issues that have 

been highlighted in this report, and whether they would like more 
detailed reporting from the PCC in future on any of these topics, or 

any other topics they consider pertinent.  

 

Tim Gale, Senior Policy and Scrutiny Project Officer, CCC 

Hani Cox, Policy and Scrutiny Officer, CCC 

  

 

APPENDICES  

Appendix 1: Police and Crime Panel Work Programme 

BACKGROUND PAPERS  

None  

 

Contact: Tim Gale, telephone: 07810 530146 or e-mail 
tim.gale@cumbria.gov.uk 

 

 

 

58

mailto:tim.gale@cumbria.gov.uk


Appendix 1 - Police and Crime Panel Work Programme 

 

Area of work Item Action/tasks 
Meeting/Timeline/ 

Date 

Police and Crime Panel 
Meetings – Agenda items 

Police and Crime Plan 

 Objective 6: Focus our Police on 
Online & Sexual Crime 

 Objective 4: Ensure Offenders Face 

 a Consequence for their Crime 

To consider a report from the OPCC 
 
Subject to a new approach to work 
programming  

July 2019 
 

Revenue Budget Monitoring – Quarter 4 
(a) Constabulary 
(b) Commissioner 

To consider budget update reports 
from the OPCC. 

July 2019 

Commissioners Annual Report To consider a report from the OPCC 
 
 
 

July 2019 

Police and Crime Plan 

 Objective 5: Always put Victims 
First 

 Objective 3: Tackle Crime and 
Antisocial Behaviour 

To consider a report from the OPCC 
 
Subject to a new approach to work 
programming 

October 2019 

Revenue Budget Monitoring – Quarter 1 
(a) Constabulary 
(b) Commissioner 

To consider budget update reports 
from the OPCC. 

October 2019 

Annual Report from Joint Audit Committee 
 
 

To consider the annual report 
update from JAC 

October 2019 

Revenue Budget Monitoring – Quarter 2 
(a) Constabulary 
(b) Commissioner 

To consider budget update reports 
from the OPCC. 

January 2020 

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7a Constabulary Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19
	7b Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19
	8 Annual Review of the Police and Crime Plan 2016-2020
	9 Update on Complaints
	10 Panel Update Report

